RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EASTPARK70 METROPOLITAN DISTRICT HELD NOVEMBER 3, 2023

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors ("Board") of the Eastpark70 Metropolitan District ("District") was convened on Friday, the 3rd day of November, 2023, at 10:00 a.m. The District Board meeting was held via video / telephone conference (Zoom). The meeting was open to the public.

ATTENDANCE

Directors In Attendance Were:

Nathan J. Miles Carter Love Timothy Bertoch

Also In Attendance Were:

Steve Beck; Special District Management Services, Inc.

Elisabeth A. Cortese, Esq.; McGeady Becher P.C.

Tyler Butterworth; Consolidated Investment Group, LLC

ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS
Disclosure of Potential Conflicts of Interest: The Board discussed the requirements pursuant to the Colorado Revised Statutes to disclose any potential conflicts of interest or potential breaches of fiduciary duty to the Board of Directors and to the Secretary of State. Mr. Beck noted that a quorum was present and requested members of the Board to disclose any potential conflicts of interest with regard to any matters scheduled for discussion at this meeting, and incorporated for the record those applicable disclosures made by the Board members prior to this meeting in accordance with State statute. It was further noted that all Directors' Disclosure Statements have been filed.

<u>Agenda</u>: Mr. Beck distributed for the Board's review and approval a proposed Agenda for the District's Regular Meeting.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Agenda was approved.

<u>Meeting Location/Manner and Posting of Meeting Notice</u>: The Board entered into a discussion regarding the requirements of Section 32-1-903(1), C.R.S., concerning the location of the District's Board meeting. It was noted that the District meeting was held via video / telephone conference (Zoom). The Board further noted that notice providing the meeting access information was duly posted and that they have not received any objections or any requests that the means of hosting the meeting be changed by taxpaying electors within the District's boundaries.

Designation of 24-Hour Posting Location: Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board determined that notices of meetings of the District Board required pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(c), C.R.S., shall be posted at least 24-hours prior to each meeting on the District website, and if the website is unavailable, on a light pole located on the Southeast corner of Smith Road and Ensenada Street, Aurora, Colorado.

<u>Minutes</u>: The Board reviewed the Minutes of the November 4, 2022 Regular Meeting and the December 6, 2022 Continued Meeting.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Bertoch and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Minutes of the November 4, 2022 Regular Meeting and the December 6, 2022 Continued Meeting were approved.

<u>May 2, 2023 Election</u>: Mr. Beck informed the Board that the May 2, 2023 election was cancelled, as allowed under Colorado law, by the Designated Election Official because there were not more candidates than seats available on the Board. It was noted that Directors Lisa Crew, Carter Love and Nathan Miles were each deemed elected by acclamation to terms ending in May, 2027.

<u>Resignation of Director</u>: The Board acknowledged the resignation of Lisa Crew from the Board of Directors, effective as of August 24, 2023.

Board Vacancy: It was noted that there are currently two vacancies on the Board. Mr. Beck informed the Board that a Notice of Vacancies must be published prior to any appointments being made at a future meeting. Director Bertoch expressed his intent to resign from the Board in January, 2024.

<u>Appointment of Officers</u>: The Board entered into discussion regarding the appointment of officers.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Bertoch and, upon vote unanimously carried, the following slate of officers were appointed:

| President | Nathan J. Miles |
|---------------------|-----------------|
| Treasurer | Carter Love |
| Secretary | Steve Beck |
| Assistant Secretary | Timothy Bertoch |

Resolution Establishing Regular Meeting Dates, Times and Location, and Designating Location for Posting 24-Hour Notices: Mr. Beck reviewed the business to be conducted in 2024 to meet statutory compliance requirements. The Board determined to schedule a regular meeting on November 1, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., via Zoom.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board adopted the Resolution Establishing Regular Meeting Dates, Times and Location, and Designating Location for Posting of 24-Hour Notices.

Insurance Matters:

<u>Cyber Security and Increased Crime Coverage</u>: Attorney Cortese discussed potential cyber security issues and a proposed increase in crime coverage related thereto with the Board.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board authorized an increase in the District's Crime Coverage to \$250,000.

Insurance Committee: The Board determined establishment of an insurance committee was not necessary at this time.

<u>District's Insurance and Special District Association ("SDA")</u> <u>Membership</u>: The Board discussed the renewal of the District's Insurance and SDA membership for 2024.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board authorized renewal of the District's insurance and SDA membership for 2024. There were no public comments.

PUBLIC COMMENT

FINANCIAL MATTERS <u>Claims</u>: The Board considered ratifying the approval of the payment of claims through the periods ending:

| Fund | Period ending Jan. 31, 2023 | | Period ending April 30, 2023 | | Period ending July 31, 2023 | | Period ending Oct. 31, 2023 | |
|---------|--------------------------------|-----------|---------------------------------|-----------|--------------------------------|-----------|--------------------------------|-----------|
| General | \$ | 12,564.08 | \$ | 10,484.82 | \$ | 16,004.55 | \$ | 15,515.10 |
| Debt | \$ | -0- | \$ | -0- | \$ | 33,413.66 | \$ | -0- |
| Capital | \$ | -0- | \$ | -0- | \$ | -0- | \$ | -0- |
| Total | \$ | 12,564.08 | \$ | 10,484.82 | \$ | 49,418.21 | \$ | 15,515.10 |

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board ratified approval of the payment of claims.

<u>Unaudited Financial Statements</u>: The Board deferred consideration of this matter.

Engagement Letter by and between the District and Scott C. Wright for Performance of 2022 Audit: Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board ratified approval of the Engagement Letter by and between the District and Scott C. Wright, Certified Public Accountant, for performance of the 2022 Audit.

2022 Audit: Mr. Beck reviewed the 2022 Audit with the Board.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board ratified approval of the 2022 Audit and execution of the Representations Letter.

<u>2023 Budget Amendment Hearing</u>: The President opened the public hearing to consider the Resolution to Amend the 2023 Budget and discuss related issues.

It was noted that publication of a Notice stating that the Board would consider adoption of a Resolution to Amend the 2023 Budget and the date, time and place of the public hearing was made in a newspaper having general circulation within the District. No written objections were received prior to this public hearing. No public comments were received and the public hearing was closed.

The Board determined that an amendment to the 2023 Budget was not necessary.

<u>Agreement Regarding Required Mill Levy for 2024</u>: Attorney Cortese reviewed the Agreement Regarding Required Mill Levy for 2024 by and between the District and Cambridge Capital LLC.

Following review and discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the Agreement Regarding Required Mill Levy for 2024 by and between the District and Cambridge Capital LLC.

<u>2024 Budget Hearing</u>: The President opened the public hearing to consider the proposed 2024 Budget and discuss related issues.

It was noted that publication of a Notice stating that the Board would consider adoption of the 2024 Budget and the date, time and place of the public hearing was made in a newspaper having general circulation within the District. No written objections were received prior to or at this public hearing. No public comments were received, and the President closed the public hearing.

Mr. Beck reviewed the estimated year-end 2023 revenues and expenditures and the proposed 2024 estimated revenues and expenditures. The Board directed Mr. Beck to request that UMB Bank, n.a. provide a statement, including a schedule reflecting payment of accrued, but unpaid interest before principal payments.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Bertoch and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the 2024 Budget and adopted a Resolution to Adopt the 2024 Budget and Appropriate Sums of Money and a Resolution to Set Mill Levies (General Fund at 1.500 mills, the Debt Service Fund at 22.500 mills, and Contractual Obligations at 1.000 mills for a total of 25.000 mills), subject to receipt of final assessed valuation and adjustment as necessary per final legislative action, and authorized execution of the Certification of Budget. The District Accountant was authorized to transmit the Certification of Mill Levies to the Board of County Commissioners of Adams County not later than January 10, 2024. The District Accountant was also authorized to transmit the Certification of Budget to the Division of Local Government not later than January 31, 2024.

<u>DLG-70 Mill Levy Certification Form</u>: Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and,

upon vote unanimously carried, the Board authorized the District Accountant to prepare and sign the DLG-70 Mill Levy Certification form for certification to the Board of County Commissioners and other interested parties in compliance with the deadline established pursuant to pending legislation.

<u>Resolution Authorizing Adjustment of the District Mill Levy</u>: The Board discussed a Resolution Authorizing Adjustment of the District Mill Levy in Accordance with the Service Plan. Following discussion, the Board determined an adjustment was not necessary.

<u>Preparation of the 2025 Budget</u>: The Board discussed preparation of the 2025 Budget.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board appointed the District Accountant to prepare the 2025 Budget, and set the Budget Hearing for November 1, 2024 at 10:00 a.m. via video / telephone conference.

Engagement Letter by and between the District and Scott C. Wright for Performance of the 2023 Audit: The Board discussed the Engagement Letter by and between the District and Scott C. Wright, Certified Public Accountant, for performance of the 2023 Audit.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Miles, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board approved the Engagement Letter by and between the District and Scott C. Wright, Certified Public Accountant, for performance of the 2023 Audit.

LEGAL MATTERSSection 32-1-809, C.R.S. Reporting Requirements (Transparency
Notice): Attorney Cortese discussed the Section 32-1-809, C.R.S.
reporting requirements and directed staff regarding compliance for 2024
(post the Transparency Notice on the SDA and District websites).

Resolution Amending Policy on Colorado Open Records Act Requests: Attorney Cortese presented the Resolution Amending Policy on Colorado Open Records Act Requests.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board adopted the Resolution Amending Policy on Colorado Open Records Act Requests.

Amendment(s) to the Aurora Regional Transportation Authority Establishment Agreement by and among HM Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9; SLC Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4; Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 and 3; Harvest Crossing Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4; Sagebrush Farm Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6; Abilene Station Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; Park70 Metropolitan District; the District; ACC Metropolitan District; Waterstone Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; Bristol Metropolitan District; Aurora High Point at DIA Metropolitan District; Colorado International Center Metropolitan District Nos. 3, 4 and 5; East Bend Metropolitan District; Sky Dance Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; TBC Metropolitan District; Powhaton Road Metropolitan District Nos. 8, 9, 10 and 11; MJC Metropolitan District; and Tollgate Creek Commons Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2: Attorney Cortese discussed the amendment(s) to the Aurora Regional Transportation Authority Establishment Agreement by and among HM Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9; SLC Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4; Fitzsimons Village Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2 and 3; Harvest Crossing Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, and 4; Sagebrush Farm Metropolitan District Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6; Abilene Station Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; Park70 Metropolitan District; the District; ACC Metropolitan District; Waterstone Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; **Bristol** Metropolitan District; Aurora High Point at DIA Metropolitan District; Colorado International Center Metropolitan District Nos. 4 and 5; East Bend Metropolitan District; Sky Dance Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2; TBC Metropolitan District; Powhaton Road Metropolitan District Nos. 8, 9, 10 and 11; MJC Metropolitan District; and Tollgate Creek Commons Metropolitan District Nos. 1 and 2. The Board acknowledged the amendments.

<u>Aurora Regional Transportation Authority Board Member</u> <u>Representative</u>: The Board discussed the appointment of a Board member to serve as the District Representative to the Aurora Regional Transportation Authority.

Following discussion, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Miles and, upon vote unanimously carried, the Board appointed Director Love as the District Representative to the Aurora Regional Transportation Authority.

<u>OTHER BUSINESS</u> <u>Status of Development</u>: Director Bertoch updated the Board on the status of development within the District. Director Bertoch reported that

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS

Building Nos. 5 and 6 are completed and both are fully leased. The last remaining large parcel in the park is Building No. 7, which is currently in the design approval phase.

ADJOURNMENT There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, upon motion duly made by Director Bertoch, seconded by Director Love and, upon vote unanimously carried, the meeting was adjourned at 11:22 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

By:

Secretary for the Meeting